Responses to Questions through 9/10/04

Responses to Questions on TIALS FINAL RFP: NNC04052948R
2. We request that the “Mission Suitability Key Personnel and Staffing Resources Template” not be counted in the page count for the Mission Suitability proposal. It will count as four pages each time it is included and may be required once for the phase-in and again for the base period. If the proposed staffing changes during the 10 years of performance it will be required all over again for each staffing change and will eating up four pages each time it is used. Since we only have a 100 page limit and this is a Government provided from we request it be removed from the page count.

RESPONSE:  The Mission Suitability Key Personnel and Staffing Resources Template is included in the page count.  

3. The newest revision of the Union agreement is not included in the RFP. Does the Government what the bidders to escalate the rates from revision that was included or will the Government provide newer rates?

RESPONSE:  The CBA information included is what is currently available.  The Government has provided out year escalation rates on the Labor Pricing Template.  Companies shall use the provided CBA unless the RFP is amended in the future with new CBA information.

4. It appears from the “Labor Pricing Template “that the Government intends to include Key Personnel and Internal Administrative Labor as direct Labor Cost.  Is this correct?   If so what is the intention for these labor cost and their associated overhead cost when you get to the “Contract Level WBS Cost Summary Template”.   Do we exclude “Key Personnel and Administrative Labor Cost (and associated overhead cost) from the “Contract Level WBS Cost Summary Template” or do we include it as part of the Overhead against these task?

RESPONSE:  Key Personnel and Internal Administrative Labor are direct costs to the contract.  The Contract Level WBS Cost Summary Template will be amended and posted as “Revised Appendix L3 WBS” to show a contract management column for companies to show elements not directly associated with other WBS’s.

5. Section C-4 Administrative and Financial Database (AFD) of the Statement of Work requires development and maintenance of the AFD database and that development must be complete within 30 days of contract start.  In addition, the SOW states No Government computer services will be made available for the purpose of development of this administrative task.  Finally, the SOW states the AFD as it exists and is further developed is the property of the Government and access shall be made available to the Contracting Offices and other Government monitoring personnel.

Is the AFD to be developed for use only in tracking this effort?

RESPONSE:  Companies can provide existing AFD that satisfy the requirements to track information.  It should be accessible by the Government and can be a multi use item but information related to this effort must be severable. 

The phrase "as it exists" indicates an existing program may be currently in use to satisfy this requirement.  Will this database be made available for development, modification, and upgrading after contract start?
RESPONSE:  No.

Is developing and maintaining this database included in any of the WBS data provided with this RFP?

RESPONSE:  No

6. Reference L.17.D.Form B(d) - The cost proposal instruction seem to indicate that only direct functions are covered by the personnel listed in appendix L.1 and that indirect contractor functions such as   Contract Manager, Human Resources, Quality Control, Safety, Security, Research Management and accounting (other than purchasing) require additional staffing. Is this correct? If so do you want theses functions (and personnel) shown as overhead?

RESPONSE:  The final RFP indicates numbers and types of personnel performing technical work functions to the level of the first line supervisor.  Companies need to include as direct labor other types of personnel consistent with their proposal required to effectively manage the effort.  These individuals shall be indicated in the key personnel and internal administrative labor category. 
**Please note cost proposal instructions are now referenced under L. 15 in the final RFP.  All cost/pricing forms are found under Appendix L.1, L.2, and L.3.  Forms A-F shall no longer be used in the cost proposal.  
7. Reference L.17.A Specific Instructions - The cost proposal required by the specific instructions must have cost broken down by the second level of the Work Breakdown Structure. The cost required on Government forms A-F is based on four general labor categories completely different from the cost breakdown structure. Is it the government’s intent to have two different cost proposals?

RESPONSE:  No.  The final RFP deleted references to forms A-F.  Please insure you follow instructions provided in the final RFP. 

8. Section L.16 appears to contain contradictory instructions.  In item A.1 the Government instructs offerors to “provide a list of the largest Government and/or industry contracts, including major subcontracts, performed in the past three years”.  This request does not limit the number of contracts an offeror can list, nor give an indication of minimum size of the contracts listed.  Subsequently in item A.7, offerors are instructed “to forward the Past Performance questionnaire (in Attachment P) to all of the contract or client references provided in response to item A.1.”  However, later in the same item A.7 the Government directs that “Each offeror shall send at least (2) and no more than three (3) Past Performance Questionnaires per entity of the offeror’s proposing team (prime and all major subcontractors).” 

a.
Is there a maximum of 3 contracts per entity allowed to be discussed in the past performance section?

RESPONSE:  L16 A1 asks for a listing of contracts for the Prime and Major subcontractors with some associated information.  Companies can discuss the listed contracts as they see fit. L 16 C instructing companies to send a Past Performance Questionnaires to ALL companies is in error.  A maximum of 3 questionnaires per prime contractor and 3 per major subcontractor is requested.  

b.
If so, and the offeror has multiple entities on the team, is the limit 3 contracts per company or may the offeror multiply the number of entities times 3 and offer more than 3 for one company and less than 3 for others so long as the total does not exceed 3 times the number of companies? (e.g. if there were 2 companies, a maximum of 6 contracts would be allowed, can the offeror list 5 contracts from one company and 1 contract from the other?)

RESPONSE:   Please see above answer

c.
If there is no maximum of 3 contracts for item A.1, please resolve the contradiction between item A.1 and item A.7 and either lift the limit of 3 Past Performance Questionnaires per proposing entity or do not require that Past Performance Questionnaires be sent to all of the contract or client references.

RESPONSE:  Please see above answer.

9. Section M.3 indicates that in the evaluation of Volume III, “Information will also be considered regarding….key personnel records.”  And later, it states that if “the proposed employees for the offeror, do not have a past performance history relating to this solicitation, the offeror will not be evaluated favorably or unfavorably on this factor.”  Proposed key personnel may have no record on the contracts cited, resulting in no information submitted about key personnel.  How does the government intend to obtain and evaluate individual personnel past performance within the context of Volume III, since no information is requested in Section L about past performance of individual personnel?

RESPONSE:  In the past performance evaluation section, the Government can consider the relevant experience of proposed key personnel as company past experience.  The Government would look to information provided in Volume 1 or a company can discuss in Volume III,.its appropriate key personnel experience to gain company past performance experience.  Just because information is not directly requested, does not prohibit a company from providing additional information.  

10. The Government has added a significant new evaluation criterion in Section L.16 item A.6 Corporate Structure that evaluates as part of the adjectival score any prior “same past working relationships proposed”.  Since this was not part of the draft RFP and multiple teams have formed without consideration of that new factor, we strongly urge the Government to delete that evaluation criterion from Section L.16.  This substantive change to the RFP is not consistent with the implied viewpoint that no substantive changes have taken place and a shortened response time for offerors on all volumes is appropriate.  Teaming relationships take considerable planning and time to execute and introducing a previously undisclosed factor this late in the RFP process creates unfair advantages and disadvantages for certain offerors that established their teaming relationships based on the factors disclosed previously by the Government.

RESPONSE:  The Government does not agree that a significant new evaluation criteria has been added.  The Government does not intend to revise the above referenced criteria.

11. The Government has deleted the page limit on Volume III Relevant Experience and Past Performance and placed no limit on the page count.  In the cost volume, although page count is unlimited, information is requested in a specific format, facilitating consistent evaluation by the Government. However, most Government Requests for Proposal limit page count on Past Performance since content volume can vary widely between bidders.  We request that a page limit of 25 pages be reinstituted on Volume III to insure consistency in the evaluation process.  If 25 pages are deemed by the Government as not enough to supply the information necessary to perform a thorough evaluation, we request that the Government determine the appropriate number of pages required to ensure fair and consistent evaluation of offers, set the limit at a higher number of pages, and delete the unlimited number of pages instruction currently provided in the RFP.

RESPONSE:  The Government does not intend to revise the above referenced instruction on Volume III page limitation. 

12. The RFP requires indirect rate ceilings. Would the Govt. allow composite ceilings (i.e., total ceiling on overhead, fringe, and G&A combined) rather than individual ceilings on each indirect element? 

RESPONSE:  Companies should propose indirect rate ceilings consistent with the Cost Proposal Instructions in the final RFP.

13. Please provide the names of each evaluation panel and its function as well a names and organizational affiliation of all panel members.  Please also specify the name of the Source Selection Official.

RESPONSE:  Other than the Contracting Officer, GRC typically does not publish the names of individuals on the source evaluation committee.  The committee is comprised of individuals knowledgeable of the work effort. 

14. Staffing Plan, Attachment W: RFP makes it clear that the bidders may, with justification, alter the Staffing Plan. How much variability is acceptable? Is 20% reduction OK or will the bidder be penalized for it.

RESPONSE:  There is no magic number related to any reductions in current staffing.  The Key Personnel and Staffing subfactor talks to the requirement if companies proposed different staffing levels.  The Government will evaluate what is proposed based on its merits and how it factors into the overall operation. 

15. Please provide the average contract seniority (years of service on this or predecessor contract) for incumbent contractor personnel.

RESPONSE:  Please see Attachment N.

16. We plan to use several labor categories and hourly rates from the RFP Wage Determination Schedule (WDS). Does the Govt. expect us to escalate the WDS rates each year (normally DOL does not allow it)? Also, during cost realism, will the Govt. be adjusting the proposed WDS rates to the incumbent contractor’s current rates or some other baseline? 

RESPONSE:   Please see the answer to question 3.  As far as adjustments to incumbents’ rates, that depends on what each offeror proposes.  Current average salary information is provided in the RFP.  The Government will insure consistency and fairness in the process across all offerors. 

17. We request that the Govt. set up a Procurement Library containing the following documents for use by all bidders. This will help level the playing field and avoid any unfair advantage to the incumbent’s team. 

­    Copy of the current contract and all amendments. 

­
Total actual and bid costs in $ and hours for each year of the contract.

­
Award Fee scores and Award Fee letters issued to the incumbent contractor after each evaluation period.

­
Cost overrun/under run history of the incumbent contractor.

­
Copy of all Task Orders issued to the incumbent contractor for the past 12 months along with total awarded cost (hours and $) for each task.

­
Copy of all Deliverables provided by the incumbent contractor.

­
Copy of QA and Health & Safety Plans, which are in effect at present under the incumbent contract.

­
Copy of the Source Selection Document applicable to current incumbent’s contract. 

RESPONSE:  Some of the requested information exists in the FOIA Library.  If not currently in the Library, the Government does not intend to provide it.   The FOIA Library may be accessed online at:  http://www.grc.nasa.gov/WWW/FOIA/99179_%20Documents.htm

18. For each of the 7 SOW areas (e.g., Logistics, Publishing, etc.) please provide the following as they apply to the current incumbent contract. 

­
A list of hardware, software, and networking protocols in use. 

­
Name and functions of each custom application (e.g., database, report generator, etc.) provided by the govt. to the incumbent contractor.

­
Name and function of al institutional software applications (GRC) unique and NASA-wide) being used under the incumbent contract.

­
Current Staffing Levels (man-years or FTEs) by labor categories under the incumbent contract. 

RESPONSE:   The first three items are not considered necessary for proposal purposes and will not be provided. The last item in included in the RFP.

19. Please provide Govt.’s forecast for growth (or reduction) in the Level-of-Effort (LOE) for each of the 7 SOW areas for each year of this 10-year contract.

RESPONSE:  The Government does not have a clear picture on future activity so no future assumptions have been provided.  For proposal purposes, the contractor shall assume a steady operational state. 

20. RFP requires bidders to establish a contractual relationship with the ODIN contractor. Please provide details so as to allow all bidders to cost it properly. We suggest that the Govt. provide a plug number as ODC to cover this cost.  This will help level the playing field. 

RESPONSE:  Contractors are not required establish a contractual relationship with ODIN.  It is one possibility.  The ODIN GRC Project Manager is Debbie Pinter 216.977.0940.

21. We strongly suggest that a site visit be arranged by the Govt. This will help bidders in developing a better understanding of the work environment. This will also help level the playing field with respect to the incumbent team.

RESPONSE:  A virtual tour was provided in the RFP.  There are no plans for an on site industry briefing. 

22. There is an Attachment “Y” included that is not referenced, is this the same as attachment “W”?

RESPONSE:  Yes.  The reference to an Attachment “Y” is in error.
23. Is a site visit scheduled?

RESPONSE:  Please see the response to #21 above.
24. Is the Quality and Assurance, and the Safety and Health Plan included in the 100 page count of Volume I?

RESPONSE:  Yes.
25. Please verify the correct NAICS Code.  It is listed as 5612210 on page 39 K.4.

RESPONSE:  The corrected NAICS Code for this procurement is 561210.  
